Newton Greens Farmhouse
Newton Greens is an isolated farm lying c 1 km to the south-west of the village of Newton-on-the-Moor,  on a north-facing hillside on the south flank of the valley of the Newton Burn, and c 100 m south of the minor road that runs west from Newton-in-the-Moor towards Longframlington. The history of the building, shown on the 1st edition Ordnance Survey 6”:1 mile map as ‘Greens Farm’, has not been researched.
The farmhouse consists of a rectangular two-storeyed block 16.8 by c.6.6 m externally, with a later north wing (formerly a farm building); the main block faces south, up the fairly steep valley side and is built of coursed or roughly-coursed sandstone, of a variety of types, with a red pantile roof; the rear wing has a roof of blue Welsh slate
The Exterior

The south front of the house, of two storeys and three bays,  is constructed of coursed roughly-squared quite large stone, with fairly heavy pointing; the western quoins are quite irregular and of no great size, whilst those at the east end are more substantial and laid in alternate fashion, and show a rough horizontal pecked finish. At the head of the wall are three courses of a creamy and better-squared larger stone, probably of 1889. The present openings, all of 1889, have dressings in a finely-tooled yellow sandstone ashlar; the windows all have surrounds with a square external step or rebate that is neatly stopped a short distance above the sill.  

In the central bay is a doorway with a  chamfered surround, and a flattened Tudor-arched head within a square frame, the lintel bearing the incised date ‘1889’ chamfered surround; to the left is a small window which together with the doorway shares a common hoodmould that has turned-back ends. Directly above this is the head of an earlier door (perhaps re-set), with a chamfered surround that bears the incised inscription:
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 (the first ‘M’ is partly eroded away). Immediately to left are what appear to be the remains of the jambs of an upper doorway, which would seem to have had its sill about half way up the ‘1668’ lintel. These are formed of quite well-squared blocks and show a light pecked tooling; two blocks of the left and three of the right survive.  Above is an 8-pane Yorkshire sash window, rather lower than those in the end bays.

The end bays each have a similar Yorkshire sash to each floor, the lower with hoodmoulds and the upper set in gablets, with square-edged slit vents above their heads; the gablets have quadrant-section kneelers and a square-edged coping.  There are indistinct remains of earlier openings between each vertical pair of windows, and a two-thirds height in the wall immediately to the west of the windows in the eastern bay. 
The western gable end of the house has quadrant-shaped kneelers and a square-edged coping, returned across the foot of a stepped ashlar stack with a cap with a moulded cornice. The east end has similar kneelers and coping, but the stack here is a plain stepped one of brown brick.  Both gable ends have large triangular coping stones that seem to pre-date the coping that now rests on them.
The lower part of the west gable end of the block is covered by the lean-to wash-house,  which is built of  roughly-squared and coursed stone with a pecked tooling; it has quite substantial quoins, and large triangular blocks to the coping of each ends, and a recent asbestos roof.  There is a slightly-projecting plinth-like course at the foot of the wall. Set off-centre in the west wall is an 8-pane casement window with a timber lintel, in a former doorway, the lower jambs of which remain visible beneath.  In the north end there is a boarded doorway with a timb3er lintel, set against the north-west angle of the earlier house, and to the west of it a small blocked opening (a dog kennel?) at the foot of the wall, its lintel cut to a segmental arch

Above the outshut roof,  the west end  of the older house shows the rough outline of a lower gable in  roughly-coursed stone, heightening in better-squared fabric. Near the south end a stack of yellow engineering brick rises against the wall face, almost concealing a small first-floor window; its north jamb, formed by a single upright block, and part of the head remain visible. There are also traces of a second blocked window, set rather higher, towards the north end of the wall. 

The east gable end of the house is constructed of coursed roughly-squared stone, but generally smaller and better-coursed than on the south front. It has two windows of the usual type, an 8-pane casement on the ground floor (with a hoodmould) and a Yorkshire sash above; there is no sign of any earlier openings.

The west part of the north wall of the house is exposed to the west of the rear wing;

It is constructed of coursed roughly-squared stone, except for three courses of creamy buff stone to eaves, as at the front. Low down there is what appears to be a blocked slit vent – three upright slabs, two for the jambs and one for the blocking between – c 1.5 m above the ground. Also at ground level there is a narrow window hard up against the wing; although from its position this looks to pre-date the wing it has a rebated surround of the usual late-19th century type, as does another smaller window directly above, set high so that it is largely above the level of the wing eaves.. At mid-wall height a little to the north is an earlier blocked window, c 0.9 m square, with a timber lintel.  

The east part of the wall, east of the wing, is without architectural features, but there is a clear horizontal break in its fabric above a course of quite large blocks c 3.5 m above the ground; the upper section of wall is of smaller well-coursed stone. There is a clear vertical break c 1 m from the east end of the wall, indicating that the whole of the east end has been rebuilt.

The rear wing is built of  coursed and roughly-squared stone with quoins and dressings very like those of the east end of the main house; it is slightly lower than the house, and has a roof of blue Welsh slate, with a plain brick stack capping the north gable.  On the west there is a boarded door, at the head of four steps, at the north end of the wall, with a large 20th-century window under a concrete lintel adjacent; to the north of this is a blocked opening that cold either be a doorway or a tall window, with another rather puzzling length of straight joint below it.  On the first floor are two windows with modern glazing. The rear (east) wall of the wing is devoid of features except for the outline of a blocked ground-floor window, c 1 m from the north end of the wall. 
The north end gable of the wing, rising above an adjacent range of single-storeyed farm buildings (which seem of the same build as the two-storey wing), has no architectural features.

The Interior
The interior of the house seems to display few features, other than its thick (c 0.90 m) walls, that pre-date the 1889 remodelling.  Stoothing walls divided the ground floor into three parts, the central division being further sub-divided by a transverse wall into a stair hall (front) and a larger (rear). The roof structure has trusses, presumably of tie-beam type, with their principals, now boxed in, springing from a sort distance below the wall-head.  The simple timber architraves of the  fireplaces in the end bedrooms could be of late 18th-century date.
Discussion
The house has been identified as ‘a rather elongate bastle’, on the strength of its thick walls, blocked slit vent in the north wall and the putative upper doorway on the south. Some doubts must remain; this is some distance from the bastle heartland  of the Upper Tyne, Rede and Coquet valleys. The slit vent would certainly be out of character in anything but a bastle. Bastles were predominantly built in the first quarter of the 17th century, so the ‘1668’ date here would seem most likely to relate to a post-bastle remodelling. 

There seems to have been two later reconstructions of the house, one in the late 18th or early 19th century when the east end was rebuilt
, the whole block was heightened and the front wall is part re-faced or rebuilt. The rear wing and adjacent foldyard group of farm building may well have been constructed at the same time. The present attractive character of the house is really due to the second reconstruction of 1889 when the south front was again remodelled, and given its present ‘Estate Tudor’ character with the two gablets, and the main gables given their copings and kneelers; all the present openings in the house seem to date from this phase, as does the interior. It is not clear when the rear wing, said to have originally been a part of the farm buildings, was brought into domestic use; this may well have been during the earlier 20th century.
The Proposed Intervention

It is proposed to open a new doorway at ground-floor level through the north end  of the west gable end wall, to the north of the chimney stack. The external face of this section of wall is visible from inside the wash-house; it is of roughly-coursed stone, with some large blocks towards the base (where there is an intermittent boulder plinth); although coated with whitewash, it is fairly clear that this is undisturbed masonry, apart from a ragged crack, almost certainly due to structural failure, close to the north end of the wall. 

To investigate the inner face of the wall, stoothing was removed from the internal face of the wall, exposed the section from 1.2 m above the floor to the ceiling at 2.2m. This proved to be of identical roughly-coursed large stone, without any sign of any structural features.

Recommendations
It seems clear that the proposed intervention in the fabric will not damage any historic architectural features; it may be thought desirable to make a record of the wall fabric – the construction of the core, form of mortar etc -  when these works are carried out, and also to record the blocked first-floor window in the wall above which will be exposed by the proposed removal of the 20th-century wash-house stack.
Peter F Ryder April 2008
� The initials are reported to be those of Matthew Foster and his wife.


� The house may have been extended eastward at this time; the evidence of the east part of the north wall seems to suggest that there was a single-storey structure here, later heightened.
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